RWSA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Minutes of Regular Meeting
November 19, 2024

> A regular meeting of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority (RWSA) Board of Directors was held on Tuesday, November 19, 2024 at 2:15 p.m. at Rivanna Administration Building, (2nd Floor Conference Room), 695 Moores Creek Lane, Charlottesville, VA 22902.

Board Members Present: Mike Gaffney, Jeff Richardson, Sam Sanders, Ann Mallek, Brian Pinkston, Quin Lunsford, Lauren Hildebrand

Board Members Absent: none

Rivanna Staff Present: Bill Mawyer, David Tungate, Lonnie Wood, Jennifer Whitaker, Betsy Nemeth, Scott Schiller, Austin Marrs, Victoria Fort, Michelle Simpson, Stephanie Deal, Leah

Beard, Annie West, Deborah Anama, Jacob Woodson

Attorney(s) Present: Valerie Long

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Gaffney convened the November 19, 2024 regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority at 2:55 p.m.

2. AGENDA APPROVAL

There were no comments or questions on the agenda.

Ms. Mallek moved that the Board approve the agenda. Mr. Sanders seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS BOARD MEETING ON OCTOBER 22, 2024

There were no comments on or questions regarding the minutes for the meeting held on October 22, 2024.

Ms. Mallek moved that the Board approve the minutes from the meeting held on October 22, 2024. Mr. Pinkston seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).

4. RECOGNITION

There was none.

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

- Bill Mawyer, Executive Director, stated that he would like to introduce the new Deputy 47
- Executive Director, David Tungate. He stated that Mr. Tungate had been their Operations 48
- Director and Water Manager for the last 12 years, and after a competitive national search, in 49
- which Mr. Gaffney participated on the selection committee, David Tungate was selected to be 50
- their first Deputy Executive Director of the Rivanna Authorities. 51

Mr. Tungate thanked everyone and said he looked forward to serving in this position.

54 55

56

- Mr. Mawyer stated that the Deputy Director position was supported by the Board in FY 23 as part of the proposed succession management plan and was approved in the FY 25 budget. He stated that they were moving forward with succession management planning and getting
- 57
- positions in place to ensure a smooth transition for those who would retire in the coming years. 58
 - He stated that they were thrilled about successfully implementing the succession plan.

59 60

- Mr. Mawyer stated that moving forward in their Workforce Development strategic plan priority, 61
- he would like to congratulate several of their mechanics who had invested significant time in 62
- training programs, including Steve Minnis, Matt Walker, Josh Powell, Tyrone Hughes, and 63
- Garrett Carver, all of whom had received certificates from Valley Career and Technical Center. 64
- He stated that they also recognized the efforts of Leah Beard, their HR Manager, and Betsy 65
- Nemeth, Director of Administration and Communications, who had obtained additional graduate 66
- certificates in employment and human resource management. 67

68

- Mr. Mawyer stated that Ms. Beard was a SHRM Senior Certified Professional, and Ms. Nemeth 69
- held a SHRM Professional Human Resources certification. He stated that he would like to extend 70
- his appreciation to these individuals for their hard work. He stated that they also celebrated 71
- Employee Appreciation Day for their Water and Sewer staff, with lunch in the parking lot, 72
- service awards, and recognition of staff members with 5, 10, 20 (Michelle Simpson), and 25 73 years of service (Lonnie Wood). 74

75

- Mr. Mawyer stated that as part of their strategic plan Communication and Collaboration priority, 76 they were still working on the Imagine a Day Without Water art contest with the City and the 77
- Service Authority, which closed on December 4. He stated that they would evaluate the 78
- 79 nominations from school children on how to conserve water. He stated that Jennifer Whitaker,
- their Director of Engineering and Maintenance, had recently presented to the UVA fourth-year 80
- capstone class about her experiences as a public sector engineer. He stated that they appreciated 81
- 82 her participation with that group.

83

- Mr. Mawyer stated that he also attended the Virginia Municipal Drinking Water Association 84
- 85 meeting in Short Pump on Thursday and served on the Board of Directors for that organization.
- He stated that they had a board meeting on Friday, which provided an opportunity to network 86
- with other larger utilities, including Fairfax and Newport News. He stated that they maintained 87
- close ties with regulatory issues and the politics of the General Assembly, as well as the 88
- department heads of State Agencies. He stated that Chris Pomeroy of AquaLaw kept them 89 informed and served as their conduit to those agencies. 90

91 92

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had previously discussed the pipe break at Sugar Hollow as a

consequence of Hurricane Helene, and repair of the pipe had now been added to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Disaster Assistance Grant Program. He stated that they plan to apply for grant money to help restore the affected area.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had previously applied for a Virginia Water Protection Permit for Beaver Creek Reservoir in 2022, and last week they had concluded discussions with DEQ, and finalized all terms of the permit. He stated that this permit would allow them to withdraw 2.2 million gallons per day from the Beaver Creek Reservoir and provided authorization to construct a larger spillway and a new pump station.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the permit would be advertised in newspapers for public comment, and if no objections were received, it would be implemented. He stated that this was a 15-year permit, which was previously a grandfathered withdrawal from Beaver Creek Reservoir. He stated that they had begun withdrawing water from Beaver Creek Reservoir before 1989, so it was not under a VDEQ permit. He stated that since they wanted to increase their withdrawals, that was why a permit was required.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the proposed project included a labyrinth spillway that would be constructed through the middle of the Beaver Creek Dam, a concrete structure with a metal bridge that would convey traffic on Browns Gap Turnpike. He stated that over the next five years, they hoped to see this project constructed, and they were expecting funding of about \$20 million from the Department of Agriculture's Natural Resources Conservation Service to help fund the project.

Mr. Gaffney asked if the 15 years was the limit for what was allowed.

Mr. Mawyer stated that 15 years was the extent of the permit. He stated that DEQ was balancing the needs of water withdrawal with the protection of a finite resource. He stated that 15 years was the longest permit the DEQ would grant, so they were balancing the needs of the many utilities who requested water from a finite water resource. He stated that they carefully reviewed all the calculations and required justification for any withdrawal, taking into consideration the required releases to the stream, which was a major issue at Beaver Creek. He stated that this included not only the amount of water needed for the project, but also the amount that must be released for downstream uses.

 Mr. Mawyer stated that this was why they had to obtain the permit. He stated that regarding the purpose of the 15-year limit, it was a balancing act, as DEQ did not want to allocate too much water to one utility, but they also did not want to under-allocate to them. He stated that the DEQ had established this 15-year limit on permits to make withdrawals, and at the end of that period, applicants must revisit and justify their water usage for a permit renewal.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the DEQ aimed to ensure that the allocated water was being used effectively. He stated that completion of this permit for Beaver Creek Reservoir was a significant achievement, thanks to Jennifer Whitaker and her team, who worked closely with DEQ to develop this plan. He stated that they viewed this as an adequate water supply for Crozet until a time between 2045 and 2070, when additional water supply may be needed to serve the Crozet

community.

140

- Mr. Mawyer stated that every 10 years, they assessed their water supply by measuring the
- reservoirs to ensure they had enough water. He stated that they collaborated with Weldon
- Cooper, the University, the County, the City, and the Albemarle County Service Authority to
- assess water demand in our service area and compare it to the available water supply, ensuring
- they had enough water for the community in the short and long term. He stated that the next
- update was scheduled for 2030.

147

Ms. Mallek asked if 2.2 million gallons per day was the grandfathered amount that was proposed to be allowed to continue.

150

Mr. Mawyer stated that this was a new total amount allowed by the permit for the next 15 years.

152

Ms. Mallek stated that this was based upon the water demand estimated for the Crozet community.

155

156 Mr. Mawyer confirmed that was correct.

157

- Ms. Mallek asked if afterwards, there would be a subsequent process for determining what would
- be released after the labyrinth project was completed. She stated that she wanted to clarify the
- timing of the reduction or increase in stream release. She stated that at some point, a reduction
- was anticipated. She stated that she was trying to determine where in the process this change
- occurred, whether it was currently in effect or would be implemented in the future.

163

- Jennifer Whitaker, Director of Engineering and Maintenance, stated that the permit process
- involved several phases. She stated that the first phase was the current-day condition, taking into
- account the existing infrastructure. She stated that the second condition considered the
- infrastructure they currently had with the dam under construction. Ms. Whitaker stated that the
- third condition was when they had all the new infrastructure built, and release elements were
- required throughout that process, which essentially allowed them to lower the water level while
- building the new dam. She stated that the agency provided some relief during this process. She
- stated that the final phase was the implementation strategy, once the dam was built, which was
- all part of this program.

173

Ms. Mallek stated that they had essentially done the homework for the next 15 years.

175

176 Ms. Whitaker confirmed that yes, they had.

- Ms. Mallek stated that she knew what to anticipate after the labyrinth was finished. She stated
- that currently, they were treating 800,000 to 1 million gallons per day in Crozet. She stated that
- there was a significant amount of cushion built in here. She stated that the Crozet residents were
- probably hoping that the same growth rate would not continue because there was very little
- available open space that had not already been developed in the growth area. She stated that they
- had had a very significant increase in consumption over the last 15 years. She stated that it was
- challenging to predict exactly how much it would continue to grow. She stated that she was very

hopeful that it would remain stable.

186

Mr. Pinkston asked what the capacity was at the Crozet Water Treatment Plant.

188

Mr. Mawyer stated that recent construction had increased the capacity from approximately 1 to 2 million gallons per day.

191

Mr. Pinkston asked where the treatment plant was located.

193

Mr. Mawyer stated that it was on Route 240, not far from the reservoir. There was a pipe that transported water from the reservoir up Route 240 and then to the water treatment plant. He stated that they planned to build a new spillway for the reservoir dam. He stated that the area to the right was the current grass spillway, but the Department of Conservation and Recreation had determined that it was not sufficient to safely pass 31 inches of rain over 24 hours.

199

Mr. Mawyer stated that to address this, RWSA developed a concept for a new spillway, a labyrinth concrete structure with tooth-like devices which would allow the water to pass from out of the reservoir and then down a chute to the stream below. He stated that the current water pump station was located at the foot of the dam, but they planned to relocate it to the bank of the reservoir to allow construction of the new spillway.

205206

207

208

209

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were currently working with the County to secure a lease or purchase agreement for the property for the pump station on the bank of the Beaver Creek Reservoir, which was owned by the County. He stated that the new intake structure would be placed in the water, and the water would be pumped out of the reservoir and transported thru a new pipe up Route 240 to the Crozet Water Treatment Plant.

210211

Ms. Mallek stated that the labyrinth would not be used on a daily basis.

213

Ms. Whitaker stated that was correct; it would only activate at the very highest flood levels.

215

Ms. Mallek stated that she was examining the compression of this narrowing and thinking that there was a lot of velocity going down there.

218

Ms. Whitaker indicated there was an energy dissipating structure at the bottom of the spillway.

220221

222223

224

Mr. Mawyer stated that he serves on DEQ's Grandfathered Withdrawals Committee, which aims to review concerns from DEQ about over-allocated water resources in the state. He stated that the DEQ is examining watersheds and requesting that every utility disclose their current water withdrawals and projected future withdrawals. He stated that they are particularly focused on addressing the grandfathered withdrawals, which they say have increased nine-fold since 1989.

225226227

228

229

230

Mr. Mawyer stated that the issue is central to their efforts to regulate the amount of water authorities can take. He stated that the committee has been working to understand the grandfathering process and its implications. He stated that Rivanna had three grandfathered withdrawals to serve Crozet, Scottsville, and the North Rivanna Water Treatment Plant. He

stated that they intend to decommission the North Rivanna Water Treatment Plant and

potentially relinquish its grandfathering. He stated that other utilities, such as the City of

Richmond, have large withdrawals that are grandfathered due to their King's Grant, which

allocates all water passing through the City of Richmond to the City itself.

watersheds to address the issue, rather than affecting the entire state.

234235236

237

238

239

240

Mr. Mawyer stated that this raised concerns, as the DEQ is grappling with the need to balance economic development with water conservation. He stated that the Grandfathered Withdrawals Committee he works on, and Victoria Fort has been assisting with, are working with DEQ to understanding the state code and the meaning of grandfathering. He stated that they have been meeting with the DEQ to discuss their interpretation of the code and the implications of the surface water management areas provision.

241242

Mr. Mawyer stated that if an area is declared a "surface water management area" due to drought, it can limit grandfathered withdrawals. He stated that the DEQ has sent a survey to all utilities, requesting information on their current and 1989 water withdrawals. He stated that the committee has encouraged the DEQ to analyze this data to better understand the scope of the issue. He stated that they questioned if this issue was statewide or limited to specific watersheds. He stated that if it was the latter, conservation measures could be implemented in those

249250

251

252

Mr. Gaffney stated that it was unclear whether the DEQ would ever fully comprehend that removing 10 million gallons of water per day from the system resulted in the same amount of water being reintroduced back in through Moores Creek.

253254255

Mr. Mawyer replied that yes, they had asked about that, and DEQ stated that their calculations took that into account.

256257

Mr. Gaffney stated that in that case, it was kind of a wash.

259

Mr. Mawyer stated that it appeared that way. He stated that it would be interesting to see the numbers from the utilities in the survey.

262263

Ms. Mallek stated that she was recalling the 19-agency meeting from 2006 or 2007, when it was already stated that they were not receiving James River water.

264265266

267

268269

Mr. Mawyer stated that he had previously discussed renovating the administration building, and they were continuing to pursue that project. He stated that within a month or so, they expected to issue a request for construction bids. He stated that one of the primary reasons for the renovation was that their laboratory was outdated and required updating. He stated that they analyze nearly all of their wastewater and water samples in-house.

270271

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had located a rental space in the City for laboratory space and intended to issue a letter of intent to rent the property. He stated that this space was currently on the market, but it was competitive, and they were hopeful of securing it. He stated that if they were successful, they planned to relocate their lab staff and operations to the rental property while the renovation took place there. He stated that they had previously considered relocating

the lab and staff to trailers on site, which had received a lukewarm response at times. He stated that if there were no objections, they would be pursuing a lease on that space in the City.

Mr. Gaffney stated that they should acknowledge that their engineers had been working in trailers for 15 or 20 years.

Mr. Mawyer stated that was right; they had been there for about 20 years. He stated that they all looked forward to the renovation, but during the renovations, it would be painful to determine where they would conduct business. He stated that they were trying to work through that.

Mr. Pinkston asked if there would be a phasing plan.

Mr. Mawyer stated they would as much as possible. He stated that ideally, they would build the addition, move into it, and then renovate the existing building. He stated that however, they had heating, cooling, and electrical systems that needed to be integrated, making it an inefficient and costly approach to complete in phases. He stated that instead, they were considering abandoning the building and allowing the contractors to work on it. He stated that they were currently working through the requirements of that plan, and once they awarded a construction contract, they would have more details.

Mr. Sanders asked if they had the lease yet.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they did not currently have one, but they would issue a letter of intent and inspect the property to ensure it met their needs. He stated that if the owner was agreeable, they would make a firm offer on the lease for the proposed site in the City.

He stated that he wanted to address the ongoing topic of fluoride. As a reminder, their current level of fluoridation was 0.7 milligrams per liter, which was a recommended level set by the Virginia Health Department and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). He stated that recently, a federal court in California had ruled that it was reasonable to reassess this level, citing concerns about its impact on younger children. He stated that the court had not found evidence of injury, but rather directed the EPA to reevaluate the fluoridation level.

Mr. Mawyer stated that this had sparked a discussion, and he recalled Mr. Lunsford receiving a comment from a customer regarding potential changes to the fluoridation level. He stated that currently, they were not planning to make any changes. He stated that they were waiting for recommendations from VDH and EPA, and if they suggested modifications, staff would be happy to implement them. He stated that they were not medical or public health professionals and therefore could not determine the correct level of chemicals, including fluoride. He stated that they relied on VDH's guidance on all chemicals, including fluoride.

Mr. Mawyer stated that as previously discussed, they intended to sell the Morris house and 2 acres at Buck Mountain Road. He stated that since then, they had conducted inspections, and found significant disrepair of the house. He stated that at this point, if there were no objections, they planned to demolish the house and sell the two-acre parcel. He stated that they were hesitant to allow prospective bidders to enter the property due to its condition.

323	Mr. Pinkston asked if the Board needed to vote on that matter.
324 325	Mr. Mawyer stated that staff did not think it was necessary, but the Board certainly could if they
326	thought it was appropriate.
327	alought it was appropriate.
328	Mr. Mawyer stated that they had the 2025 Board meeting schedule, which was scheduled for
329	every fourth Tuesday of the month next year, except for November and December. He stated that
330	it was included on the consent agenda. He stated that they had proposed adding December 26 to
331	staff holidays as the 13th holiday, as it fell on a Friday after Christmas on Thursday. He stated
332	that otherwise, they had standing holidays, which included 12 and a half days, with some floating
333	holidays where they were open for business, but staff could take vacation with permission or
334	receive credit for vacation time.
335	
336	Ms. Mallek stated that she noticed during the Rivanna Solid Waste Authority meeting that there
337	were six stars for holidays in which the facilities were closed. She stated that she would like for
338	that information to be disseminated in a newsletter for the public's benefit.
339	•
340	Mr. Mawyer stated that the six holidays when Solid Waste facilities were closed included New
341	Year's Day, Memorial Day, the Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas
342	Day.
343	
344	Mr. Lunsford asked if the repairs to the Sugar Hollow transfer pipe were still on schedule.
345	
346	Mr. Mawyer stated yes; Faulconer Construction was moving forward with the work. He stated
347	that they had ordered the pipe and secured the permits.
348	
349	Mr. Lunsford asked if the grant would slow that down.
350	
351	Mr. Mawyer stated that it would not. He stated that the grant provided after completion
352	reimbursement for the work.
353 354	6. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
355	Matters Not Listed for Public Hearing on the Agenda
356	There were none
357	There were none.
358 359	7. RESPONSES TO PUBLIC COMMENTS
360	7. RESI ONSES TO I OBLIC COMMENTS
361	There were no comments from the public, therefore, there were no responses.
362	There were no commons from one public, underest, under word no responses.
363	8. CONSENT AGENDA
364	
365	a. Staff Report on Finance
366	
367	b. Staff Report on Operations

369	С.	Staff Report on CIP Projects
370 371	d.	Staff Report on Administration and Communications
372 373	e.	Staff Report on Wholesale metering
374	ε.	Staff Report on Wholestie metering
375	f.	Staff Report on Drought Monitoring
376 377	g.	Approval of Board Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2025
378	8.	Approvat of Board Meeting Schedule for Catenata Tear 2025
379 380	h.	Approval of the Holiday Schedule for Calendar Year 2025
381 382 383	i.	Approval of Term Contract for Professional Commissioning Services for Utility Buildings and Facilities – Facility Dynamics Engineering
384 385 386	j.	Approval of Term Contracts for Commissioning Services for Industrial Controls Integration, Management and Inspection Services – E-Merge and Short Elliot Hendrickson
387 388 389	Mr. Pir	akston asked if staff could provide further information on Item J.
391 392 393 394 395	Act, bu staff pl	ge. E-Merge was not a professional firm as defined by the Virginia Public Procurement at they possessed expertise in technology and controls. He stated that Mr. Wood and his anned to utilize both firms to ensure controls were installed properly and tested, and to the post-occupancy inspections after a project was completed to verify effectiveness.
396 397		akston asked if this would apply to their Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (A) systems.
398 399 400		awyer stated yes. He stated that the SCADA system controlled their chemical inputs and and operational status, including when they were running and when they were not.
401 402 403	Mr. Pir	akston asked if they had dedicated industrial controls companies they relied on.
404 405 406 407 408 409	stated t pumps, stated t	awyer stated that they had historically received the industrial installer through the itive bid process, and it was whoever the construction contractor decided to team with. He hat they would have a specification which would outline their requirements, including the but they did not fully detail a wiring diagram to show the exact installation process. He hat they may specify the need for a PLC or motor control in certain locations, but it was a build approach that the specialty control subcontractor would wire and install.
410 411	Mr. Pir	akston asked if the commissioning agent would come after that.
412 413 414		awyer stated that was right. He stated that they would add value by reviewing the design tallation.

Mr. Pinkston stated that this information would be beneficial for the public to know, considering what happened with the pumping station this year. He stated that this was another response they

were putting together and they were applying best practice for having someone put these systems

through their paces. He thanked them for doing this.

Ms. Mallek asked if the commissioning person looked at the plan beforehand and was not waiting until it was installed to determine its effectiveness. She asked if there would be an initial review before the system was brought online.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they would participate in the design process, from the outset, to help determine what they specified was appropriate, including products and contract specifications. He stated that the contractor then submitted a variety of submittals, detailing what he intended to provide, and the commissioning consultant verified that these products met our requirements

429 functionally.

Mr. Mawyer stated that after installation, they ensured that the products worked as intended. He stated that their design engineer handled this process, but having this second or third set of expert review provided an added layer of oversight, allowing them to better support staff with specialized needs. He stated that this expansion of their program came with some costs, but avoiding pump station submergence made it well worth the investment.

Ms. Mallek moved that the Board approve the Consent Agenda. Mr. Pinkston seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).

9. OTHER BUSINESS

a. Presentation: Long-Range Planning for Water & Wastewater Services Bill Mawyer, Executive Director

Bill Mawyer, Executive Director, stated that as they embarked on long-range planning, he was pleased to move beyond budgeting and facts to explore the thinking and planning aspects of their work. He stated that today, he would focus on thinking ahead. He said that as Ben Franklin once stated, "When the well is dry, we know the worth of water." He stated that he would like to thank Ms. Anama for bringing that quote to their attention. He stated that they had discussed this topic before, and he would like to revisit it.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the earth's water was a finite resource, and they must consider its availability. He stated that interestingly, 70% of the earth's surface was covered by water, but only 3% was freshwater, and a mere 0.5% was in lakes and rivers. He stated that the majority of freshwater was tied up in ice caps and groundwater. He stated that when they looked at the water on Earth, only about 0.5% was available in lakes and rivers, which may seem small, but it was a significant amount.

Mr. Mawyer stated that for example, the Great Lakes held six quadrillion gallons of water, a staggering amount. He stated that research by Colorado State suggested that nearly half of the

freshwater basins may not be able to meet monthly demand by 2070. He stated that the United Nations had also reported that two-thirds of the world would face a month of water shortage by 2050. He stated that this was a serious issue, as they saw other localities and states struggling to maintain adequate drinking water supplies.

Mr. Mawyer stated that their thinking and planning were driven by capacity, regulations, emerging contaminants, technology, sustainability, and affordability. He stated that they were fortunate to have a university in their local economy, which provided jobs and growth. He stated that in their 2020 Service Area Water Urban Demand Study, they had met with the university, Weldon Cooper, and City and County planning staff to project the community's water demand.

Mr. Mawyer stated that by 2070, the population of Charlottesville was projected to be approximately 65,000 people. He stated that the Albemarle County Service Authority, which served the County's public water system, was expected to serve around 106,000 people. He stated that considering the County's utility customers, Rivanna needed to serve about 170,000 people in 2070. He stated that by 2030, they were anticipated serving 135,000 people, which meant an additional 35,000 people would require drinking water over the next 35 years. He stated that this growth seemed reasonable.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they also needed to consider the impact of climate change, which may lead to rising sea levels, coastal migration, and more frequent droughts. He stated that the 2002 drought, lasting 18 months, was a prime example. He stated that regarding the intense rain they had experienced, it was likely they could expect more severe storms in the future. He stated that as part of their planning, they were addressing these challenges. He stated that locally, they had been working on water supply projects to ensure their community had a sufficient drinking water supply.

 Mr. Mawyer stated that recently, the Board had awarded a contract for the Ragged Mountain to Observatory raw water line project, which tied into the Birdwood line. He stated that they would be advertising for construction bids for the Central Water Line next month, which would distribute finished water along Jefferson Park Avenue and Cherry Avenue to the Long Street Bridge area. He stated that they had a smaller project planned for the following summer to clear the perimeter of the Ragged Mountain Reservoir, allowing them to add 700 million gallons of water.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were working on a larger project to build a pipeline from Rivanna Reservoir to Route 250 at Birdwood, completing the piping system and enabling them to transfer water between Rivanna Reservoir, Ragged Mountain Reservoir, and the South Rivanna and Observatory Water Treatment Plants. He stated that this addition would be substantial, with a price tag of at least \$200 million. He stated that they were hopeful that it would be financially feasible for the community. He stated that when he mentioned the differing costs between the County and the City, they had provided the funding formulas that were agreed upon in various past agreements.

Mr. Mawyer stated that for example, the pump station along Reservoir Road was 80% funded by the Service Authority. He stated that these calculations had been done by Ms. Hildebrand, Mr.

O'Connell, and himself a few years ago. He stated that in the case of the Rivanna to Ragged 506 pipeline, the Service Authority was funding 80% of the project, as per the terms of the Ragged 507

Mountain Dam project agreement. 508

509

510 Ms. Mallek asked if the timbering done in the next year was within the Rivanna umbrella, as far as covering the costs and generating revenue from selling the timber. Mr. Mawyer replied yes. 511 He stated that to ensure that they could raise the water level, they needed to clear the perimeter. 512

513

- Mr. Mawyer discussed the new Regional Planning Unit that had been established, which 514
- included Greene, Louisa, Fluvanna, and Buckingham Counties, along with Albemarle County, 515
- ACSA, Town of Scottsville, and City of Charlottesville to form the Middle James area. Mr. 516
- Mawyer stated that this Middle James area represented the five counties that bordered and used 517
- water from the James River. He stated that the James River watershed spanned from West 518
- Virginia to the Bay, and their planning unit would consist of the five counties, five incorporated 519
- towns, three authorities, and one planning district, the Thomas Jefferson Planning District 520
- Commission, as well as the City. 521

522

- Mr. Mawyer stated that by December 8, each member of the planning unit was required to 523 provide a contact to the DEQ for their representative to the water supply planning committee. He 524 stated that they could reply directly to the DEQ or let Rivanna know, and they would respond on 525
- behalf of the entire area. He stated that Jennifer Whitaker would serve as Rivanna's 526
- representative. 527

528 529

Mr. Pinkston asked if there was a request right now.

530

Mr. Mawyer replied no; but they could inform Mr. Sanders or Mr. Richardson who could let him 531 know. He stated that if they wanted to let him know their chosen representative, that was fine as 532 well. 533

534

Mr. Pinkston asked if he would like them to put together folks from the ACSA and City 535 informally. 536

537

538 Mr. Mawyer stated that he was letting Mr. Sanders and Mr. Richardson know that the localities needed representatives and needed to notify DEQ by December 8 who that representative and the 539 alternate would be on this regional planning team. He stated that they could designate Rivanna if 540 they wanted to, but they could have their own representative if they preferred. 541

542

Mr. Gaffney asked if the Regional Planning Unit (RPU) members were representatives of these 543 544 15 different entities.

545

546 Mr. Mawyer stated that was his understanding. He stated that it included five counties, five incorporated towns, three authorities, one City, and one planning district commission. 547

548

Mr. Gaffney asked if they joined in with them, they would get four or five votes. He asked if it 549 550 made more sense for everyone to show up the first time.

Mr. Mawyer stated that he was unsure if it was a well-formulated plan, even with DEQ being involved. He stated that during his conversation with the DEQ person who would be assisting them, it became clear that they planned to set up an initial meeting, after which the group would be expected to manage itself. He stated that over the course of a five-year period, they were supposed to develop a comprehensive water supply plan for the entire water planning unit.

Mr. Gaffney asked if there would be five individual plans.

Mr. Mawyer stated that it depends. He stated that the theme was encouraging cross-jurisdictional projects, providing water for everyone. He stated that Albemarle, Charlottesville, and Scottsville had a water plan that expired, and it was time to renew it. He stated that the state advised them to wait until they established a new planning unit. He stated that it was assumed that every locality in the state had a water supply plan. He stated that nevertheless, it seemed to him that the theme was to empower localities with the capability of supplying water to assist those who did not, at the very least, help them develop a plan.

Ms. Mallek stated that if she understood correctly, every one of these jurisdictions would have a designated person. She stated that they should not give up any of these seats in the planning unit by consolidating. She stated that they needed to ensure that every decision was made with one of their people in the right position.

Mr. Mawyer stated that he would think so. He stated that if they delegated it to Rivanna, they would not take their proxy. He stated that there would still be three votes as opposed to one.

Mr. Richardson stated that he would like to discuss the logic behind delegating the RWSA to be their representative. He stated that in terms of checks and balances, he wondered how this process would work and what safeguards were in place to ensure that their interests were being represented effectively.

Mr. Mawyer stated that as the responsible water supplier of the County and City, they managed that issue for the community. Because this was a water supply issue, they could be at the forefront of addressing it. He stated that however, it was also a political process, particularly if it involved another County or an extension of the growth area within the County. Mr. Mawyer stated that was the County's prerogative or the City's to decide, not Rivanna's. He stated that even if they were to represent the interests of the County or City, they would still need to coordinate closely with them and determine whether the City or County supported the proposed plan. He stated that he believed the DEQ was hoping for a consensus, as the ordinance indicated. He stated that the minority or opposing views would also be expressed in the plan.

Mr. Mawyer stated that this process was supposed to be completed over five years, and the DEQ had an extensive list of data that required the planning unit to provide, including information on their water demand, the number of houses and businesses, and the amount of public water used. He stated that DEQ stated that if they did not have this data, they did not have to create it, and instead, they should rely on existing data. He stated that this was a deference to smaller localities, allowing them to avoid spending money to gather the necessary information.

Mr. Pinkston asked if Virginia DEQ would support this initiative with project management or some type of facilitation of the process.

600

Mr. Mawyer stated that DEQ had designated a person to oversee the start of the process. He stated that if they had issues or challenges, they would defer to DEQ to help them move forward.

603

Mr. Pinkston stated that it seemed that there should be an assigned person to lead this effort.

604 605

Ms. Mallek stated that in the early communications, they were offering \$20,000 and stated it would not be a financial burden on the localities. She stated that she was not sure if that was per jurisdiction.

609

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were waiting for DEQ to issue further guidance regarding this committee.

612

Mr. Pinkston asked if their state senators and delegates were aware of this.

614

- Mr. Mawyer stated that the amendment was approved by the General Assembly, so presumably,
- 616 they were aware of the situation. He stated that Katrina Callsen had been made aware of what
- they had been asked to do, but it would not hurt to continue the discussion with those
- 618 representatives.

619

Ms. Mallek stated that Delegate Amy Laufer was on the State Water Commission.

621

Mr. Mawyer stated that they would deal with this committee and planning process and report back to the Board. He stated that he was certain there would be lots of questions moving forward.

625

Mr. Pinkston stated that it was interesting that Louisa got stitched onto them when they were not in their actual watershed.

628

Mr. Mawyer stated that the James River Water Authority had a withdrawal from the James River. He stated that they were an authority serving Louisa, and they were building an intake on the James River to serve Fluvanna and Louisa.

632

633 Mr. Richardson asked if this work was due to begin in April of next year.

634

Mr. Mawyer stated that the first meeting was supposed to occur in April.

636

637 Mr. Richardson stated that this group would not meet again before the December 8 deadline to 638 inform DEQ of their representatives. He asked if Ms. Mallek would be comfortable delegating 639 their representation to Rivanna, with any updates being reported back to the Board of 640 Supervisors for discussion.

641

Mr. Gaffney stated that if Louisa County, the Town of Louisa, and James River Water Authority attended the meetings with three voting representatives, they should have five for Albemarle,

Charlottesville, Scottsville, ACSA, and RWSA. He stated that everyone should show up with separate representatives for the first meeting and decide how it would work, then consult further about the future delegations. He stated that Ms. Mallek would be a good County representative for this group.

Mr. Richardson stated that he understood.

Mr. Mawyer stated that over the next five years, PFAS issues would become more prominent. He stated that more information would be shared on the topic. He stated that moving forward, they were aware of the new regulation from the EPA on PFAS and drinking water, which was implemented in April. He stated that the American Water Works Association, the American Wastewater Association, and several other business organizations had filed a lawsuit to challenge the maximum contaminant level limits. He stated that specifically, they suggested that these current limits of 4 should be at least 10 parts per trillion.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the challenge was that the EPA had not followed the proper administrative process to issue the regulations. He stated that this issue was ongoing, and they would see how it unfolded with the new federal administration. He stated that additionally, there was concern about wastewater. He stated that they had detected PFAS in their wastewater, and if there was ever a regulation requiring its removal, it would require an expansion of our CIP.

Mr. Mawyer stated that biosolids were the end product of wastewater treatment, and they transported them to McGill Environmental daily. He stated that they had tested the PFAS levels in their wastewater six times in 2021 and planned to conduct further tests. He stated that currently, PFOS levels ranged from 5.9 to 8.7, while PFOA levels were at 0.6 and 0.5.

Mr. Lunsford asked what contributed to the increase to 8.7 in period five.

Mr. Tungate stated that they collected six samples over six different days. He stated that the data they generated, approximately five tons per night, were representative of the graph. He stated that they repeated the process six times to gather some insight.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they made approximately 545 trips each year to transport biosolids to McGill Environmental compost facility in Waverly. He stated that land application was another option for biosolids disposal. He stated that land application was not always well-received, and landfilling was also an option, although the state and country lacked sufficient landfill space to consider this as a long-term solution. He stated that incineration was another method, but it came with the added concern of air pollution.

Ms. Mallek stated that they would install scrubbers to clean it out. She stated that the Blue Plains facility in Northern Virginia had invested \$50 million in a 10-year cost recovery plan, which had allowed them to stop shipping high-quality materials to this area.

Mr. Mawyer stated that when discussing emerging contaminants, the EPA required them to participate in the Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule, specifically Rule #5. He stated that they were currently studying 30 unregulated contaminants, collecting samples, and reporting the

results to the EPA. He stated that the EPA then reviewed the national results to determine if a contaminant warranted regulation.

Mr. Mawyer stated that currently, they were monitoring 29 additional PFAS compounds, as well as lithium, fluoride, nanoparticles, microplastics, and other potential endocrine and interrupters that may pose future issues. He stated that previously, they had discussed PFAS, which were the waterproofing agents found in certain cookware, waterproof clothing, and fast food containers, preventing oils and grease from seeping through. He stated that it was worth noting that most humans had PFAS in their bodies.

Mr. Gaffney stated that he recently saw a pan in a store that stated on the packaging that it contained PFAS. He stated that they had not made anything illegal yet.

Mr. Mawyer stated that he wanted to bring up another point. He stated that they removed PFAS from their drinking water through Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) filters, and then regenerated the media with heat. He stated that he was unsure about what happened to the PFAS during the regeneration process. He stated that it would potentially become an issue in the future. He stated that the GAC filters would lose some of their effectiveness in removing PFAS, potentially diminishing their current performance. He stated that they did not currently have a clear answer to this question, but it could be a concern.

Mr. Lunsford asked if there were any plans to handle the leachate differently in the future, considering the regulations on wastewater treatment for PFAS releases.

Mr. Mawyer stated that there were no regulations in place regarding PFAS removal from wastewater. He stated that if they were to obtain a PFAS removal requirement for wastewater, it would also impact solid waste management, as they may need to limit PFAS-contaminated waste and there would be high costs to pay for the necessary filters. He stated that this would result in a significant increase to the Solid Waste Authority, as well as other industries in the community that may be contributing PFAS. He stated that if they started having high PFAS test results, they would attempt to identify the source of the contamination.

Mr. Gaffney stated that he was curious to know if there was any current information on whether the maximum allowable levels of PFAS in wastewater would be set at a higher level than those in drinking water.

Mr. Mawyer stated that PFAS levels in wastewater would be lower than those in drinking water.
Although, others might debate that wastewater could become drinking water after it was
processed. He stated that they had previously discussed the issue of microplastics, particularly in
plastic water bottles.

- Mr. Mawyer stated that technology and artificial intelligence (AI) were also emerging concerns.
- He stated that on the one hand, AI offered numerous benefits, such as real-time process
- applications and enhanced SCADA capabilities, which could enable them to operate more plants
- and input points. He stated that however, AI also raised cybersecurity concerns, as malicious
- actors could exploit AI in an attempt to breach their systems.

Mr. Mawyer stated that he would like to provide more insight into data centers and their significant water and power consumption. He stated that data centers were among the top 10 water-consuming commercial activities in the United States, with some facilities consuming millions of gallons of water per day. He stated that an average-sized data center used approximately 300,000 gallons of water daily, while large data centers could consume up to 1 to 5 million gallons per day.

Mr. Mawyer stated that furthermore, data centers often consisted of multiple buildings, which could significantly increase their water consumption. He stated that given Virginia's high concentration of data centers, particularly in Loudoun County, Prince William County, Stafford, Spotsylvania, Caroline, and other areas, there were concerning implications. He stated that the presence of multiple data centers in the state, with over 300 facilities, raised questions about their environmental impact.

Mr. Mawyer stated that additionally, Dominion Power had reported that it would take four to seven years to generate enough power to serve these data centers, which was not a sufficient timeframe to address the issue. He stated that he came across a report suggesting that Amazon was considering bringing its own power for data centers with a small nuclear reactor.

Mr. Mawyer stated that although Amazon had not specified how they planned to find the necessary water, they could create a strain on water systems across the state and country, including if a data center was developed here.

Mr. Mawyer stated that sustainability was a top priority, and they were constantly working towards it. He stated that they had been coordinating with Ms. Hildebrand and the City on renewable natural gas and exploring ways to utilize wastewater biogas in the City's gas system. He stated that high-efficiency vehicles were also on their radar.

 Mr. Mawyer stated that reusing treated wastewater to produce potable water was a topic that would likely gain more attention in the future as water resources became increasingly scarce. He stated that Dominion Power had also been exploring the use of solar panels at the landfill. He stated that he would like to thank the Board for considering their Sustainability and Grants Coordinator position, which had been an asset in helping them address these issues.

Mr. Mawyer stated that affordability would continue to be a concern as prices rose for refuse, water, and wastewater services. He stated that when examining their locality's map, they saw scattered wastewater sites and water treatment plants scattered around. He stated that he believed they should look for opportunities to consolidate services in the long term.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had previously proposed and the Board had approved decommissioning North Rivanna WTP and combining its services with South Rivanna and Observatory. He stated that they also planned to convert the Glenmore Wastewater Treatment Plant into a pump station and combine the small package plant at Stone Robinson Elementary School, bringing the wastewater back to Moores Creek for a better treatment process and improving those communities with consolidation. He stated that these consolidations would

improve their wastewater and water supply system's affordability.

Mr. Mawyer stated that Scottsville was far away from all other facilities, so they did not have any current solutions for them, but within the water supply planning unit, Buckingham was nearby, and Scottsville had excess capacity, potentially offering opportunities for a cross-community project to supply Buckingham. He stated that Red Hill, as a groundwater system, would be a candidate for future improvements as well.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the Board had decided to retain the Buck Mountain property. He stated that he believed that this was wise, as it would be a prime location for a future reservoir. He stated that they had discussed and approved the lease at Observatory WTP, securing a 50-year agreement. He stated that additionally, they had a 50-year lease option if it was renewed, which was in the distant future.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had recently expanded the Observatory and improved South Rivanna WTPs, but by 2045, they may need to expand South Rivanna from 12 to 16 million gallons per day and Observatory may require an expansion to 20 million gallons per day by 2070.

Mr. Mawyer stated that this was their long-term plan for 2050 and beyond. He stated that to summarize, population growth and the positive aspects of their community would continue to drive water and wastewater demand. He stated that regulations would necessitate more treatment. He stated that there may be opportunities for local and regional collaboration to optimize resources and minimize costs. He stated that a long-term strategic plan was essential to guide their decisions. He stated that he would like to thank the Board for their efforts and appreciated their dedication.

Ms. Mallek stated that she had a couple of minor points to bring to their attention. She stated that in slide 12, she understood that there was a significant effort to minimize the impact of parts per trillion of PFAS in drinking water, but she believed the health consequences were something that people needed to consider, as individual families were currently bearing the health consequences of contaminants in the water across the country. She stated that she was fairly dismayed that they were not being addressed adequately.

Ms. Mallek stated that although the amount of PFAS may be small, such extremely toxic substances could not be ignored. She stated that moving on to the data center issue, she was pleased to see that some facilities had closed-loop water systems. She stated that she hoped that as localities developed ordinances, they would require this feature, as it would be a cost-effective way to ensure safe drinking water for regular people was not made totally unaffordable.

Ms. Mallek stated that in the future, she would like to learn more about the idea of consolidating treatment plants, as the cost of building a pipeline from Glenmore to the Moores Creek location seemed excessive, potentially saving only a fraction of the original cost. She stated that consolidating treatment plants seemed like a viable option.

Ms. Mallek stated that additionally, she was concerned about the history of sewage sludge

828	production in the Buck Mountain area, which had a lasting impact on the environment. She
829	stated that according to the map provided, the northwest part of the County had been used for
830	biosolids applications, which were concentrated in steep, mountainous areas that drained directly
831	into Buck Mountain Creek.
832	
833	Mr. Mawyer stated that they would certainly consider those points.
834	
835	Mr. Gaffney asked if the County could control the biosolids applications.
836	
837	Ms. Mallek stated that they did not have the authority to do so. Those were controlled by
838	VDEQ.
839	
840	10. OTHER ITEMS FROM BOARD/STAFF NOT ON AGENDA
841	
842	There were no items to discuss.
843	
844	11. CLOSED MEETING
845	
846	There was none.
847	
848	12. ADJOURNMENT
849	
850	At 4:00 p.m., Mr. Sanders moved to adjourn the meeting of the Rivanna Water and Sewer
851	Authority. Mr. Pinkston seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).
852	
853	Respectfully submitted,
854	
855	mul ghort
856	Mr. Samuel Sanders

Secretary-Treasurer

